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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

GOLDEN ENGLISH;
DARCEL JONES;
AARON LLOYD;
WANDA HAVELOW; and
SHANISHA SMITH,

Plaintiffs,

v i 10 = 244

ggEé SRTDEIO{FC S%%ﬁl{égg?STER COUNTY . CIVIL ACTION NO. 10-
COMMISSIONER CAROL AICHELE, in her

official and individual capacities;

COMMISSIONER TERENCE FARRELL, in

his official and individual capacities; )

COMMISSIONER KATHI COZZONE, in her *

official capacity; and :

JAMES FORSYTHE, DIRECTOR, CHESTER :

COUNTY VOTER SERVICES, in his official

and individual capacities,

Defendants.
COMPLAINT
NATURE OF THE CASE
1. This is an action to secure the fundamental right to vote for African-Americans in

Lower Oxford Township in Chester County, Pennsylvania by ending practices which unfairly

burden their right to vote. In the 2008 general election, voters assigned to the Lower Oxford

East precinct had to wait as long as seven hours in line to vote — far longer than voters elsewhere

in Chester County. The long wait was caused by county officials failing to provide an adequate
polling place and other election resources. The predictable result was unusually low voter
turnout and a racially disparate impact in the precinct with the highest percentage of African-

American voters in the county.



2. This dispute centers largely on the location and physical characteristics of the
polling place in the Lower Oxford East precinct. Prior to 1992, the polling place was located on
the campus of Lincoln University, an historically black university where most of the precinct’s
voters reside. Not long after a Lincoln University professor won a seat on the local school board
in a hotly contested election, county officials moved the polling place to the Lincoln Village |
Community Association building at 120 Elkdale Street, Lincoln University, Pennsylvania (the
“Community Center”), a small community center off-campus that is effectively inaccessible
without a car. The polling place remained at the community center until 2009, despite requests
to return it to Lincoln University. At that time, in response to complaints about the long lines in
the 2008 election, county officials moved the polling place to the Lower Oxford Township
Building, which is even farther away from campus, even less accessible to African-American
voters, and equally small.

3. The plaintiffs in this case are African-American voters registered in the Lower
Oxford East precinct. They claim that Chester County’s failure to provide an adequate and more
accessible polling place and other election resources has violated, and will continue to violate,
rights guaranteed to them by Section 2 of the Voting Rights Act of 1965, as amended, 42 U.S.C
§ 1973, and the Fourteenth and Fifteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution. They
seek damages, as well as declaratory and injunctive relief necessary to protect their fundamental
right to vote in future elections.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

4, This action arises under Section 2 of the Voting Rights Act of 1965, as amended,

42 U.S.C. § 1973, and the Fourteenth and Fifteenth Amendments to the United States



Constitution. This Court therefore has subject matter jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. § 1331 and 42

U.S.C. § 1973i(f).

5. This Court also has subject matter jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. § 1343(a)(3) and
(4) because this suit is “authorized” by the Civil Rights Act of 1871, 42 U.S.C. § 1983.

6. This Court has authority to grant both declaratory and injunctive relief under 28
U.S.C. §§ 2201 and 2202.

7. One or more of the defendants resides in Chester County, Pennsylvania. Under
28 U.S.C. § 1391(b), venue is therefore proper in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania.

PARTIES

8. Plaintiff Golden English is an African-American resident of and a registered voter
in the Lower Oxford East precinct, in Chester County, Pennsylvania. He did not vote in the 2008
General Election because of the actions of the Defendants.

9. Plaintiff Aaron Lloyd is an African-American resident of and a registered voter in
the Lower Oxford East precinct, in Chester County, Pennsylvania. Mr. Lloyd is a student at
Lincoln University. He did not vote in the 2008 General Election because of the actions of the
Defendants.

10. Plaintiff Darcel Jones is an African-American resident of and a registered voter in
the Lower Oxford East precinct, in Chester County, Pennsylvania. She did not vote in the 2008
General Election because of the actions of the Defendants.

11. Plaintiff Wanda Havelow is an African-American resident of and a registered
voter in the Lower Oxford East precinct. In 2008, Ms. Havelow cast her vote at the Community
Center, 120 Elkdale Street, in Lower Oxford Township, after waiting more than six hours to

vote.



12. Plaintiff Shanisha Smith is an African-American resident of and a registered voter
in the Lower Oxford East precinct, in Chester County, Pennsylvania. Ms. Smith is a student at
Lincoln University. In 2008, Ms. Smith cast her vote at the Community Center, 120 Elkdale
Street, in Lower Oxford Township, after waiting seven hours.

13. Defendant Chester County is a political subdivision of the CommonWealth of
Pennsylvania and is capable of being sued in its own name.

14. Defendant Chester County Board of Elections is responsible for the
administration and conduct of primary and general elections in Chester County. It has the
authority to select and equip polling places. It is comprised of the three Chester County
Commissioners.

15. Defendants Carol Aichele, Terence Farrell and Kathi Cozzone are elected
members of the Chester County Board of Commissioners and the Chester County Board of
Elections. All three are sued in their official capacities; Defendants Aichele and Farrell are sued
in their individual capacities, as well.

16. Defendant Department of Voter Services is the Chester County department
responsible for administering and conducting elections. '

17. Defendant. James Forsythe is the Director of Voter Services for Chester County
and responsible for the administration of polling places in Chester County. He is sued in his
official and individual capacities.

18. The defendants, individually and through the conduct of their agents, servants and

employees, were and are acting under color of state law at all times relevant to this action.



FACTUAL BACKGROUND

Lower Oxford East Precinct

19. The Lower Oxford East precinct is home to Lincoln University of Pennsylvania,

an historically African-American university.

20. According to the 2000 census, African-Americans comprise 68.13% of the voting
age population in the Lower Oxford East precinct, or 1,404 of 2,271 voters. Lower Oxford East
has the largest population of African-American voters in Chester County. The maj ority of
African-Americans in Lower Oxford East reside on or around the campus of Lincoln University.

21. From 1982 until 1992, Lincoln University hosted the Lower Oxford East polling
place in the auxiliary gymnasium at Manuel Rivero Hall.

22. In 1989, Dr. Robert Millette, a Lincoln University Sociology professor, was a
candidate for the Board of School Directors of the Oxford Area School District. Dr. Millette
won with the support of African-American voters, including students at Lincoln University, and
defeated the incumbent. The incumbent was not African-American.

23. Shortly thereafter, the Board of Elections moved the p(;lling place to the
Community Center. The Community Center is approximately one mile from Lincoln University.
Voters without cars are unable to safely walk from Lincoln University to the Community Center
because the roads leading to it are narrow, have no sidewalks or shoulders, and are poorly lit.

24. In 1993, after the polling place was moved from Lincoln University’s campus, Dr.
Millette ran for township supervisor. He did not Win the election.

25. The Community Center has been Lower Oxford East’s polling location in every

election from 1992 until the 2009 primary, when it was moved to the Township Building.



The Community Center

26. The Community Center has a single bathroom, one entrance in the front reached
by a flight of stairs, and a ramp for persons with disabilities in the rear, near the bathroom. The
Community Center can only accommodate six voting booths, one optical scanner, and the poll
workers. There is no shelter for waiting voters.

27. The Community Center is adjacent to railroad tracks on wﬁich a freight train
passes at least once per day. The front entrance is close to a road on which automobile traffic
passes at high speed. The parking lot is poorly lit. When there is significant turnout, voters must
line up outside the building, next to the railroad tracks and the public roads, and it becomes
dangerous to vote at the Community Center as well as difficult to wait in rain and bad weather.

28. In 2004, and again in 2008, voters endured long wait-times before casting their
ballots because the Community Center Wa; unable to accommodate the number of voters
wishing to participate in those elections. In each of those elections, the Lower Oxford East
precinct was forced to remain open after the normal closing time to process waiting voters. In
the April 2008 presidential primary, Lower Oxford East stayed open until 10:30 p.m. to process
all of the waiting voters.

2008 Petition to Move the Polling Location to Lincoln University

29. As a result of the difficulties experienced in the 2008 Primary and recognizing
that high numbers of newly registered voters and extraordinary interest in the 2008 presidential
election would translate into high voter turnout, in September 2008 Lower Oxford East voters,
including the Judge of Elections, petitioned the defendants to relocate the polling place to a more

suitable location on Lincoln University’s campus.



30. The President of Lincoln University offered the use of the auxiliary gymnasium at
Manuel Rivero Hall as the Lower Oxford East polling location.

31. Manuel Rivero Hall has ample parking, multiple restrooms, is well-lit at night,
has a disabled-accessible entrance and can accommodate more voting booths, ballot scanning
machines, poll workers, and voters than the Community Center.

32. There are polling places on the campuses of Immaculata University and West
Chester University in Chester County.

33. The proposed move from the Community Center back to Lincoln University was
a “no brainer,” according to Defendant Forsythe, acting in his capacity as Director of Voter
Services.

34. Nevertheless, after a Board of Elections hearing on the petition to move the
Lower Oxford East polling place to the Lincoln University campus on September 23, 2008, the
Board voted 2-1 to reject the petition, with Defendant Cozzone dissenting.

November 2008 General Election

35, As predicted, on November 4, 2008, hundreds of voters converged on the
Community Center trying to cast their ballots in the presidential election.

36. The line of voters began to build even before the polls opened, and delays began
as soon as the polls opened.

37. The first step in the voting process is to check in the voters using a list of
registered voters. After a voter checks in, he/she can then proceed to a privacy booth to
comp’lete the ballot (Chester County uses paper ballots).

38. Chester County Voter Services failed to provide the Lower Oxford East poll

workers with an up-to-date list of registered voters. The Board of Elections routinely sends



updated lists of registered voters to predominantly white precincts early in the morning on
Election Day. Because they did not have an up-to-date list, poll workers were forced to
handwrite the name, address, birth date, and capture the signature of each registered voter whose
name was not on the out-of-date list, further extending voter wait times. A large number of
voters were not even on the list.

39. The pollbooks were divided into multiple alphabetical sections but the
Community Center floor space was too small to permit more than two lines divided by alphabet
for checking in voters, causing further delays. There was one other supplemental book with
additional newly registered voters’ names in it that had to be passed between the clerks. They
were not given the most up-to-date list of new registrants until late in the day.

40. The physical layout of the Community Cenfter made matters worse. The interior
of the Community Center is only 817 square feet, a single room measuring approximately 43 feet
by 19 feet. Because of the limited space in the facility, there were a limited number of election
workers who could check in voters, and a limited number of privacy booths where voters who
had checked in could fill out their ballots. As a result, there were long lines of voters waiting to
check in and, once checked in, waiting to vote.

41. Voters also formed a line for the single scanner in which to deposit ballots.

42, With several hundred people waiting to vote, a line also formed for the single
bathroom. So many voters needed restroom facilities that a campaign volunteer arranged for the
delivery of six portable toilets at his own expense.

43. The presence of multiple lines in the small Community Center created a chaotic

atmosphere.



44, Throughout the day and night, Aaron Martin, a Republican pollwatcher,
challenged the identities of young African-American voters, even if they had valid voter
registration cards and photo IDs. Repeated challenges of young African-American voters caused
even more delays and intimidated voters. Upon information and belief, Martin did not challenge
any Caucasian voters.

45. Defendant Commissioner Farrell was present in the Lower Oxford East polling
place most of the day. Commissioner Farrell, an officer charged with the fair conduct of
elections in Chester County, did not attempt to stop Martin’s unlawful challenges. When
frustrated voters approached him to voice their concerns, Commissioner Farrell shrugged and
dismissed them.

46. Despite numerous complaints about the delays at the Lower Oxford East precinct,
Defendant Forsythe refused to take any steps to relieve the congestion or speed up voting at that
site.

47. In the late evening, the Chester County Court of Common Pleas ordered the
defendant Board of Elections to provide additional assistance to the election officials at the
Lower Oxford East precinct.

Golden English

48. Plaintiff Golden English had the day off from work on Election Day and tried
multiple times to vote.

49. Mr. English first arrived at the Community Center to vote between 9:00 and 10:30
a.m. Because of the number of other cars already parked in the area, the closest he could park
was near the post office on Ashmup Avenue. This is approximately a quarter mile away from

the Community Center.



50. Mr. English walked from his car along Ashmun Avenue, then along Elkdale
Road, to the Community Center. There was a high volume of vehicular traffic on both roads,
neither of which have sidewalks.

51. Mr. English arrived at the Community Center and observed a long line from the
front door of the polling place extending away from the entrance to the Community Center along
the fence down Walnut Street. Most of the people standing in line were African-Americans.

52. Mr. English stayed 10 to 15 minutes. During that time, the line was moving very
slowly and was getting longer.

53. Because of the long line, Mr. English left to do errands in Oxford with the
intention of returning later when the line had subsided.

54. Between 12:30 and 1:00 p.m., Mr. English drove back through Lincoln Village to
the Community Center to vote. Parked cars were all along the nearby roads. The line to vote
had not become shorter but instead had lengthened considerably. At that time, the line snaked
around back and forth in the parking lot. People were standing in the rain along roads and along
the railroad tracks.

55. - Because there were too many people and the lines were not moving, Mr. English
again decided to leave and come back later with the expectation that the lines would be shorter
and he would be able to vote. He returned home.

56. At 5:30 p.m., Mr. English’s wife left for the Community Center with their son and
daughter (both of whom were voting for the first time in a presidential election). Mr. English
Stayed home to watch his granddaughter so that the other members of his family could vote.

57. Mr. English’s wife, son and daughter got in line shortly before 6:00 p.m. They

waited 5 hours to vote, most of it outside in the rain.
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58. M. English spoke to his wife by telephone several times during the night to get
updates on his family’s progress through the line. At 8:00 p.m., he brought pizza to them. It was
dark and raining, the lines were confused and disorganized, and the people in line were angry
and frustrated. Hundreds of people crowded around the Community Center and spilled into the
streets. He knew then that he likely would not be able to vote. Under Pennsylvania law, he
would not have been permitted to vote unless he was in line when the pollé closed at 8:00 p.m.

59. Mr. English returned home to put his granddaughter to bed. As he waited for his
wife and children to come home so he could try to vote, he saw on television that the election
had been called in Barack Obama’s favor. He realized then that even if he could vote, it would
not make a difference.

Darcel Jones

60. Plaintiff Darcel Jones lives across Park Lane from the Community Center. She
lives with her husband, her mother, and their children.

61. Her husband, Tyrone Jones, got in line to vote approximately 30 minutes after the
polls opened and waited an hour and a half to vote. Ms. Jones stayed home with her children.

62. Ms. Jones intended to vote after Mr. Jones returned home. However, because it
took him so long to vote, she decided to wait until the line became shorter.

63. During the day she repeatedly checked the length of the line at the polls to try to
vote. The line never got shorter but instead got longer and longer.

64. Ms. Jones has a health condition that prevents her from standing for a long period

in the cold.
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65. The number of cars parked all around her house made her concerned that
emergency vehicles would not be able to get through if her mother, who has a serious heart
condition, needed assistance.

66. Ms. Jones was told by her friend, Myrtis Gray, that she had to wait six hours in
line but could not wait any longer and left without voting. She also observed others leave
without voting.

67. Ms. Jones did not vote because of the unreasonably and unnecessarily long lines

caused by the defendants’ conduct.

Aaron Lloyd

68. M. Lloyd is a student at Lincoln University.

69. Mr. Lloyd attempted to vote in the 2008 General Election, but was unable to do
s0.

70. He needed a ride to the polling place because he was unable to walk the distance

from his dormitory.

71. Mr. Lloyd arrived at the polling place at approximately 12:00 p.m. He saw a
large crowd of people and a seemingly unmoving line. Although he could not tell exactly how
many people were waiting outside, it looked like hundreds.

72. Mr. Lloyd was at the polling place for several minutes. He asked a person in line
how long the wait was and was told that it was about 8 hours.

73. Due to an accident in which Mr. Lloyd was involved the previous April, the wait
would ha%/e been very difficult for him physically.

74. Realizing that he could not stand in line as long as would be required to vote, Mr.

Lloyd left.
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Wanda Havelow

75. Plaintiff Wanda Havelow made two attempts to vote on Election Day. At 10 a.m.
she drove her mother to the polling location and found approximately 250 voters waiting in line.
Voters waiting told her that the wait time was more than two hours. Her mother was allowed to
move to the front of the line to vote because she was physically unable to wait for several hours.
Ms. Havelow left to drive her mother home.

76. Ms. Havelow returned around 2:20 p.m. She stood in line in the rain for more
than 6 hours waiting to vote. She was in the line near the train tracks when a freight train passed
perilously close to the hundreds of others waiting to vote.

717. Ms. Havelow observed her neighbor, William Martin, and his son, Williaxh
Martin, Jr., enter the line behind her and then leave without voting. She also observed four other
neighbors leave without voting.

Shanisha Smith

78. Plaintiff Shanisha Smith waited approximately seven hours in line to vote at the
Community Center.

79. She observed voters who stood in line and left the line because they could not
wait the entire time.

80. Ms. Smith missed classes at Lincoln University because of the long delays caused
by defendants’ conduct.

Disparate Impact

81. Many African-American voters experienced hardships similar to those endured by

the plaintiffs on Election Day. The hardships endured by African-American voters in the Lower

Oxford East precinct were unnecessary and completely avoidable because an adequate potential
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polling place was available on Lincoln University’s campus. These hardships violated the
fundamental right of African-Americans in Lower Oxford East to vote.

82. Defendants knew, and intended, that their actions would deter African-American
voters. Whether or not by design, the actions of defendants had the effect of unequally
burdening and deterring African-American voters.

83. Lower Oxford East’s 5 5.65% voter turnout (the percentage of registered voters
who voted) was the lowest in Chester County, whereas voter turnout for Chester County at large
was approximately 79%.

84. African-American voter turnout in the Lower Oxford East precinct was lower
than African-American voter turnout in the rest of the county.

85. Lower Oxford East was the only precinct in Chester County that required court-
ordered assistance to mitigate the inadequacy of its polling location — assistance which proved to
be too little and too late.

86. The defendants’ actions caused similarly situated voters in Chester County to be
treated differently, as evidenced by the radically disparate voter turnout levels between thé rest
of the county and the Lower Oxford East precinct.

2009 Petition to Move the Polling Location to Lincoln University

87. In January 2009, concerned citizens, the Judge of Elections, committeepersons
and clerks again petitioned defendants to move the polling place to Lincoln University’s campus.
Two groups of petitioners collected 718 signatures from voters in the community requesting that
thé Lower Oxford East polling location be moved to Lincoln University’s campus. This

represented more than 25% of the 2,796 registered voters in the Lower Oxford East precinct.
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88. On April 15, 2009, the Board of Elections held a hearing on the petition. The
Board heard testimony regarding the inadequacies of the Community Center as a polling place
and the benefits of Manuel Rivero Hall. Three African-Americaﬁ Lincoln University students
attended the hearing and spoke in support of moving the polling place on campus, as did others.

89. Despite community support for moving the polling place to the Lincoln
University campus, the defendants voted to move the polling place to Lower Oxford’s Township
Building.

90. The Lower Oxford Township Building is nearly twice as far from campus as the
Community Center and can only be reached by automobile. Most of the 1.6 mile route is along a
portion of Township Road which is narrow, unlit and has no shoulders or sidewalks. The portion
along Lincoln Highway is unlit and has no sidewalks.

91. Many African-American voters who live on campus without access to cars will be
unable to get to the Township Building to vote.

92. The Lower Oxford East polling location was located in the Township Building’s
meeting room, previously used by the Lower Oxford West precinct, which has a much smaller
voting population. The Township Building’s meeting room is as small or smaller than the
Community Center, and does not address the primary cause of long lines on Election Day — the
lack of adequate space.

93. The defendants’ actions demonstrate that the defendants are taking extraordinary
measures to avoid Lincoln University’s campus, the only location easily accessible to the
majority of African-American voters in the district, and which has facilities that are more than

adequate for all voters.
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94, The defendants’ refusals to move the Lower Oxford East polling location to a
superior facility at Lincoln University which is also the only accessible location for the majority
of African-American voters, along with the initial removal of the polling location after Dr.
Millette’s electoral victory in 1989, indicate discriminatory intent.

95. The defendants have approved and adopted polling locations and election
resource allocations that are known to be inadequate énd difficult for African-American voters to
access. In doing so, the defendants have wrongfully burdened the voting rights of African-
American citizens and neglected their duty to protect the voting rights of all Lower Oxford East
citizens.

96. Plaintiffs have been harmed by the deprivation of their rights by defendants, and
are entitled to redress for those violations.

INJUNCTIVE AND DECLARATORY RELIEF IS NECESSARY

97. The defendants’ actions and inactions directly and proximately disenfranchised a
number of plaintiffs (and others) or otherwise severely burdened plaintiffs’ and others’ right to
vote.

98. The plaintiffs reasonably anticipate that, absent injunctive relief, they will be
disenfranchised or severely burdened in the exercise of their fundamental right to vote in future
elections.

99. An actual and justiciable controversy exists as to which the plaintiffs require a
declaration of their rights. Unless the requested injunctive relief issues, defendants will continue
to infringe the constitutional rights of plaintiffs and other voters.

100. The plaintiffs have no adequate remedy at law for the defendants’ violations of

their rights.
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101. The plaintiffs are suffering irreparable harm as a result of the defendants’
violations of the law and Constitution and the harm will continue unless declared unlawful and

enjoined by this Court.

COUNT I
42 U.S.C. § 1973, Voting Rights Act of 1965, as amended

102. The plaintiffs incorporate by reference the allegation; of paragraphs 1 through
101 as though fully set forth at length.

103. The defendants’ actions in failing to provide an adequate polling place and other
clection resources in the November 2008 election resulted in the denial and abridgement of, or
unfairly burdened, the plaintiffs’ right to vote and opportunity to participate in the political
process on account of race and color in violation of Section 2 of the Voting Rights Act of 1965,
as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 1973.

104. Under the fotality of the circumstances, the voting process is not equally open to
participation by the plaintiffs and other African-American voters because plaintiffs have less
opportunity than other Chester County voters to participate in the political process and to elect
representatives of their choice. |

105. The location, prominence, facilities and accessibility of a polling place affect a
voter’s ability to exercise her or his fundamental right to vote.

106. The defendants’ actions in ordering that the Lower Oxford East polling place be
moved to the Lower Oxford Township Building will result in the continued denial and
abridgement of the plaintiffs’ right to vote in future elections on account of race and color in

violation of Section 2 of the Voting Rights Act of 1965, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 1973.
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COUNT TWO
42 U.S.C. § 1983; Fourteenth Amendment, Equal Protection

107. The piaintiffs incorporate by reference the allegations of paragraphs 1 through
106 as though fully set forth at length.

108. The defendants, acting under color of state law, have maintained and
implemented an unequal system of voting that intentionally burdens and denies equal access to
the right to vote on account of race or color, and results in arbitrary and disparate treatment of

voters in Lower Oxford East as compared to other voters in Chester County.

COUNT THREE
42 U.S.C. § 1983; Fourteenth Amendment, Equal Protection

109. The plaintiffs incorporate by reference the allegations of paragraphs 1 through
108 as though fully set forth at length.

110. The defendants, acting under color of state law, have maintained and
implemented an unequal system of voting that Burdens and denies equal access to the right to
vote, and results in arbitrary and disparate treatment of voters in Lower Oxford East as compared
to other voters in Chester County.

111. The lack of adequate physical space to accommodate the number of reg‘istered
voters in the precinct and the County’s failure to include hundreds of names of registered voters
on the poll books was arbitrary and resulted in unequal treatment of the voters of Lower Oxford
East.

112. Similarly-situated voters in other large precincts within Chester County did not
suffer the long delays throughout the entire Election Day as did the voters of Lower Oxford East.

113. As a result, voters in Lower Oxford East do not have equal access to the

franchise.
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114. The defendants, acting under color of state law, have deprived and severely
burdened — and threaten to deprive and severely burden — the right to vote of individual

plaintiffs.

COUNT FOUR
42 U.S.C. § 1983; Fourteenth Amendment, Due Process

115. The plaintiffs incorporate by reference the allegations of paragraphs 1 through
114 as though fully set forth at length.

116. The defendants, acting under color of state law, have maintained and
implemented, and are maintaining and implementing, a system of voting that is fundamentally
unfair, that denies and severely burdens the right to vote, and that violates substantive Due

Process under the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution.

117. As a result, voters in Lower Oxford East do not have equal access to the
franchise.
COUNT FIVE
Fifteenth Amendment

118. The plaintiffs incorporate by reference the allegations of paragraphs 1 through
117 as though fully set forth at length.

119. The defendants, acting under color of state law, in failing to provide an adequate
polling place and other election resources in the November 2008 election, intentionally denied
plaintiffs their right to vote on account of race or color, in violation of Section 1 of the Fifteenth

Amendment to the United States Constitution.
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REQUEST FOR RELIEF AS TO ALL COUNTS

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs respectfully request that this Court:

a. enter a declaratory judgment that the defendants’ failure to provide an adequate
polling place and other election resources in the November 2008 election and its
recent action moving the polling place farther away from the Lincoln University
campus violates § 2 of the Voting Rights Act of 1965, as amended, 42 US.C. §
1973, and the Fourteenth and Fifteenth Amendments to the United States
Constitution;

b. enjoin the defendants from enforcing the Chester County Board of Elections
decision to move the Lower Oxford East polling place to the Lower Oxford
Township Building;

c. direct defendants to issue an order moving the polling place of Lower Oxford East
precinct to Lincoln University’s Manuel Rivero Hall;

d. authorize the appointment of Federal observers pursuant to Section 3(a) of the
Voting Rights Act of 1965, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 1973a(a) during the
pendency of this proceeding and as part of a final judgment;

e. retain jurisdiction pursuant to Section 3(c) of the Voting Rights Act, as amended,

42 U.S.C. 1973a(c);

f. award the plaintiffs nominal damages;
g. award the plaintiffs all damages caused by defendants’ conduct;
h. award the plaintiffs the cost of this action together with their reasonable attorneys’

fees pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §§ 1973/(e) and 1988; and
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i. retain jurisdiction of this action and grant the plaintiffs such other relief which

may in the determination of this Court be necessary and proper.

Dated: lfomvwa 19 2010
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(EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASLS) (fN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY)

NOTE: N LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF THE
LAND INVOLVED.

(¢) Attorney’s (Firm Name, Address, and Telephone Number) Attorneys (If Known)
Phillip E. Wilson, Jr., Esquire
DLA Piper LLP (US)

1650 Market Street, Suite 4900
Philadelphia, PA 19103
(215) 656-3344

1. BASIS OF JURISDICTION (Place an “X™ in One Box Only) I1I. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES (Place an “X” in One Box for Plaintiff
(For Diversity Cases Only) and One Box for Defendant)
PTF DEF PTF DEF
D 1 U.S. Government @ 3 Federal Question Citizen of This State O [0t Incorporated or Principal Place O4 [:] 4
Plaintiff (U.S. Government Not a Party) of Business In This State
D 2 US. Government [J4 Diversity Citizen of Another State D 2 D 2 Incorporated and Principal Place D 5 [:] 5
Defendant (Indicate Citizenship of Parties in Jtem [II) of Business In Another State
Citizen or Subject of a 03 [J3 Foreign Nation Os Y
Foreign Country

1V, NATURE OF SUIT (Placc an "X in One Box Only)

CONTRACT TORTS FORFEITURE/PENALTY BANKRUPTCY OTHER STATUTES
110 Insurance PERSONAL INJURY I PERSONAL INJURY 610 Agriculture B 422 Appeal 28 USC 158 400 State Reapportionment
120 Marine 310 Airplane [T 362 Personal Injury— || 620 Other Food & Drug 423 Withdrawal 410 Antitrust
130 Miller Act 315 Airplane Product Med. Malpractice L} 625 Drug Related Seizure 28 USC 157 430 Banks and Banking
140 Negotiable Instrument Liability [7] 365 Personal Injury - of Property 21 USC 881 450 Commerce
150 Recovery of Overpayment E] 320 Assault, Libel & Product Liability 630 Liguor Laws PROPERTY RIGHTS 460 Deportation
& Enforcement of Judgment Slander D 368 Asbestos Personal 640 R R, & Truck 290 C h 470 Racketeer Influcnced and
B 151 Medicare Act 1330 Federal Employers’ Injury Product 650 Airline Regs. ! 430 Popyng ts Corrupt Organizations
152 Recovery of Defaulted Liability Liability 660 Occupational 840 Ta“;m X 480 Consumer Credit
Student Loans 340 Marine PERSONAL PROPERTY Safety/Health rademar 490 Cable/Sat TV
0 (Excl. Veterans) 345 Marine Product 370 Other Fraud 7] 690 Other 810 Selective Service
153 Recovery of Overpayment Liability 371 Truth in ‘1 ending 850 Securities/Commodities/
of Veteran's Bengﬁls 350 Motor Vehicle 380 Other Personal ¢ LABOR _SOC[AL SECURITY Exchange
160 Stockholders” Suits 355 Motor Vehicle Property Damage (] 710 Fair Labor Standards ([ 861 HIA (1395¢f) [1875 Customer Challenge
190 Other Contract Product Liability 77 385 Property Damage Act 862 Black Lung (923) 12 USC 3410
195 Contract Product Liability  |[7]360 Other Personal Injury Product Liability 720 Labor/Mgmt. Relations || 863 DIWC/DIWW (405(g)) {1890 Other Statutory Actions
196 Franchise 730 Labor/Mgmt Reporting [[_] 864 SSID Title XVI 891 Agricultural Acts
REAL PROPERTY CIVIL RIGIITS  [PRISONER PETITIONS & Disclosure Act 865 RSI (405(g)) 892 Economic Stabilization Act
- - 740 Railway Labor Act 893 Environmental Matters
[[] 210 Land Condemnation 2 44} Voing [ 510 Motions to Vacate 790 Other Labor Litigation 894 Energy Allocation Act
220 Foreclosure 442 I;mplpymenl Sentence 791 Empl. Ret. Inc. FEDERAL TAX SUITS 895 Freedom of Information
230 Rent Lease & Ejectment 443 Housing/ fiabeas Corpus: Security Act — Act
240 Tortsto Land Accommodations 530 General [J 870 Taxes (U.S. Plaintiff [J900Appeal of Fee Determination
245 Tort Product Liability 444 Welfare 535 Death Penalty or Defef\&liant) Under Equal Access
290 Al Other Real Property 445 Amer. w/Disabilities - 540 Mandamus & Other IMMIGRATION [} 871 IRS-~Third Party 1o Justice
4Employmen.r i 350 Civil Rights " 462 Naturalization Application 26 USC 7609 1950 Constitutionality of
] 446 Amer. w/Disabilities - 555 Prison Condition 463 Habeas Corpus - State Statutes
(?lher . Alien Detaince
[J 440 Other Civil Rights ] 465 Other Immigration
Actions
V. ORIGIN  (place an “X v Qne Box Only) Transferred from Appeal to District
B | Original  [J2 Removed from  []3 Remanded from (] 4 Reinstated or ~ [] § another district 3 6 Multidistrict [ 7 Judge from
Proceeding State Court Appeltare Court Reopened (specify) Litigation Magistrate
Judgment

Cite the U.S. Civil Statute under which you are filing (Do not cite jurisdictional statutes unless diversity):

42 U.S.C. §§ 1973 and 1983

Bricf description of cause:

Failure of defendants to provide an adequate and more accessible polling place and other election resources.
VII. REQUESTED IN [ CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION  DEMANDS Declaratory and CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint:

V1. CAUSE OF ACTION

COMPLAINT: UNDER F.R.C.P. 23 Injunctive Relief and Damages JURY DEMAND: “Yves (¥INo

VIII. RELATED CASE(S) . o
(See instructions):

1IF ANY JUDGE DOCKET NUMBER
DATE SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY OF RECORD s ’l ;
120/10 : &( & V.75
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY d 7 74N
RECEIPT 4 AMOUNT APPLYING IFP JUDGE MAG JUDGE American LegalNet, Inc.

www-ForTTSWorkficwoon




IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

CASE MANAGEMENT TRACK DESIGNATION FORM

CIVIL ACTION
Golden English, Darcel Jones, Aaron Lloyd,
Wanda Havelow, and Shanisha Smith
V. :
Chester County, Board of Elections, ) NO.

Commisioners Carol Aichele, Terence Farrell,
Kathi Cozzone, and James Forsythe, Director

In accordance with the Civil Justice Expense and Delay Reduction Plan of this court, counsel for
plaintiff shall complete a case Management Track Designation Form in all civil cases at the time of
filing the complaint and serve a copy on all defendants. (See § 1:03 of the plan set forth on the reverse
side of this form.) In the event that a defendant does not agree with the plaintiff regarding said
designation, that defendant shall, with its first appearance, submit to the clerk of court and serve on
the plaintiff and all other parties, a case management track designation form specifying the track to
which that defendant believes the case should be assigned.

SELECT ONE OF THE FOLLOWING CASE MANAGEMENT TRACKS:

(a) Habeas Corpus — Cases brought under 28 U.S.C. §2241 through §2255. ()
(b) Social Security — Cases requesting review of a decision of the Secretary of Health

and Human Services denying plaintiff Social Security Benefits ()
(c) Arbitration — Cases required to be designated for arbitration under Local Civil Rule 53.2. ()

(d) Asbestos — Cases involving claims for personal injury or property damage from
exposure to asbestos. ()

(e) Special Management — Cases that do not fall into tracks (a) through (d) that are
commonly referred to as complex and that need special or intense management by
the court. (See reverse side of this form for a detailed explanation of special

management cases.) ()
(f) Standard Mana gement — Cases that do not fall into any one of the other tracks. (X)
1/20/10 Phillip E. Wilson, Jr. Plaintiffs
Date Attorney-at-law Attorney for
(215) 656-3344 (215) 606-3344 phillip.wilson@dlapiper.com
Telephone FAX Number E-Mail Address
(Civ. 660) 16/02 American LegalNet, Inc.

www.USCourtForms.com




UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA — DESIGNATION FORM to be used by counsel to indicate the category of the case for the purpose of
assignment to appropriate calendar.

Address of Plaintiff. See Attachment A.

Address of Defendant: See Attachment A.

Place of Accident, Incident or Transaction: Lower Oxford Township, Chester County, PA
(Use Reverse Side For Additional Space)

Does this civil action involve a nongovemnmental corporateparty with any parent corporation and any publicly held corporation owning 10% or more of its stock?

(Attach two copies of the Disclosure Statement Form in accordance with Fed. RCiv. P. 7.1 (a)) Yes D No E
Does this case involve multidistrict litigation possibilities? Yes D No &
RELATED CASE, IF ANY:

Case Number: Judge Date Terminated:

Civil cases are deemed related when yes is answered to any of the following questions:

1. Is this case related to property included in an earlier numbered suit pending or within one year previously terminated action in this court?

Yes [:I No XI

5 Does this case involve the same issue of fact or grow out of the same transaction as a prior suit pending or within one year previously terminated

action in this court? Yes D No &

3. Does this case involve the validity or infringement of a patent already in suit or any earlier numbered case pending or within one year previously

terminated action in this court? Yes D No E

4. 1s this case a second or successive habeas corpus, social security appeal, or pro se civil rights case filed by the same individual?

Yes D No x

CIVIL: (Place ¥ in ONE CATEGORY ONLY)

A. Federal Question Cases: B. Diversity Jurisdiction Cases:

1. l:l Indemnity Contract, Marine Contract, and All Other Contracts 1. D Insurance Contract and Other Contracts
2. I:] FELA 2 D Airplane Personal Injury

3. D Jones Act-Personal Injury 3. D Assault, Defamation

4. [:] Antitrust 4 D Marine Personal Injury

5. l_—_] Patent 5. D Motor Vehicle Personal Injury

6. l:] Labor-Management Relations 6. D Other Personal Injury (Please specify)

7. [X] civil Rights
8. D Habeas Corpus

7. [] Products Liability

8. D Products Liability — Asbestos

9. D Securities Act(s) Cases
9. D All other Diversity Cases

10. I:] Social Security Review Cases

11 D All other Federal Question Cases
(Please specify)

(Please specify)

ARBITRATION CERTIFICATION
(Check appropriate Category)

1, Phillip E. Wilson, Jr. , counsel of record do hereby certify:

D Pursuant to Local Civil Rule 53.2, Section 3(c)(2), that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the damages recoverable in this civil action case
exceed the sum of $150,000.00 exclusive of interest and costs;

& Relief other than monetary damages is sought.
DATE: 1/20/10 Phillip E. Wilson, Jr. 78917
Attorney-at-Law Attorney LD.#

NOTE: A trial de novo will be a trial by jury only if there has been compliance with F.R.CP. 38.
1 certify that, to my knowledge, the within case is not related to any case now pending or within one year previously terminated action in this court
except as noted above.

DATE: 1/20/10 Phillip E. Wilson, Jr. 78917
Attorney-at-Law Attorney L.D.#

American LegalNet, Inc.
CIV., 609 (6/08) www.FormsWorkflow.com




ATTACHMENT A

Plaintiffs:

Mr. Golden English
120 College Circle
Lincoln University, PA 19352

Ms. Darcel Jones
112 Park Lane
Lincoln University, PA 19352

Mr. Aaron Lloyd
1926 Fawn Drive
Glenside, PA 19038

Ms. Wanda Havelow
135 Irwin Drive
Lincoln University, PA 19352

Ms. Shanisha Smith

SMR 891

1570 Baltimore Pike

Lincoln University, PA 19352

Defendants:

Chester County Board of Elections
Chester County Commissioners’ Office
2 N. High Street, Suite 512

P.O. Box 2748

West Chester, PA 19380-0991

Attention: Commissioner Carol Aichele
Commissioner Terence Farrell
Commissioner Kathi Cozzone

Ms. Carol Aichele
2424 Dickson Lane
Malvern, PA 19355

James Forsythe, Director
Chester County Voter Services
601 Westtown Road, Suite 150
P.O. Box 2747

West Chester, PA 19380-0990
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